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COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT - 1 38TH FLOOR 
1000 SECOND AVENUE 

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98104 
(206) 622-2000

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

DATANET LLC, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

MICROSOFT CORPORATION, 

Defendant. 

NO. 2:22-cv-01545

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT 
INFRINGEMENT 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiff Datanet LLC (“Datanet” or “Plaintiff”), by and through its attorneys, for its 

Complaint against defendant Microsoft Corporation (“Defendant”) alleges as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is a civil action for patent infringement under the patent laws of the United

States, 35 U.S.C. § 1 et seq. 

2. This action arises from Defendant’s unlicensed use of Datanet’s patented

technology in Defendant’s file hosting/backup service called Microsoft OneDrive (“OneDrive”).  

The marketing, testing, importation, use and sale of such product(s) within the United States 

infringes upon the intellectual property rights of Datanet.  This illegal practice will continue 

unless, and until, the Court puts an end to it.  

3. By this action Plaintiff seeks money damages, exemplary damages and attorneys’

fees arising from Defendant’s patent infringement under the Patent Act, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, 283–

285.
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PARTIES 

4. Plaintiff is a limited liability company formed under the laws of Nevada with a 

principal place of business located in Colorado. 

5. Defendant is a corporation organized under the laws of Washington. 

6. Defendant maintains its headquarters at 1 Microsoft Way, Redmond, Washington. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7. This is an action for infringement against Defendants brought under the Patent 

Act, 35 U.S.C. § 271 based upon Defendants’ unauthorized commercial manufacture, testing, 

use, importation, offer for sale and sale of its file hosting/backup service called OneDrive which 

infringes upon United States (“U.S.”) Patent Numbers 8,473,478 (“’478 Patent), and 9,218,348 

(“’348 Patent”), and 10,585,850 (“’850 Patent).   

8. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the matters asserted herein under 

28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a). 

9. This court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant is a 

Washington Corporation that maintains its headquarters in Redmond, Washington, has a 

significant presence in Washington, conducts its business throughout the United States, including 

within the state of Washington, and has committed in this District the acts of patent 

infringement, which have given rise to this action. 

10. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1400(b) as 

Defendant is a Washington Corporation that maintains its headquarters in Redmond, 

Washington, has a significant presence in this District, and Defendant has advertised and derived 

revenue from sales of products to citizens within this District and has engaged in systematic and 

continuous business contact within this State.  Defendant has had and continues to have 

significant contact with the state of Washington through its U.S. based websites, through U.S. 

based sales, and distribution of its OneDrive product and services throughout the U.S., and have 

purposefully availed themselves of Washington’s laws.  

Case 2:22-cv-01545   Document 1   Filed 10/31/22   Page 2 of 72



 

  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT - 3 
 

38TH FLOOR 
1000 SECOND AVENUE 

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98104 
(206) 622-2000 

 
 

11. Upon information and belief, a number of Defendant’s current and former 

employees with information relevant to this case reside in the Redmond, Washington area. 

BACKGROUND 

A. Plaintiff’s Patented Technology 

12. The use and importance of data backup and storage, and cloud storage in 

particular, have grown tremendously since the year 2000.  

13. In 1999, a company called IPCI, Inc. (“IPCI”) set out to develop an automated, 

real-time zero-touch data safety, backup, and recovery software product.  It called the project 

AccuSafe.   

14. Unfortunately, the AccuSafe product was never marketed or sold, however, 

though the development process, IPCI secured a portfolio of patents (the “Patent Portfolio”) 

around the unique and novel technology.   

15. On September 20, 2018, IPCI assigned its rights to the Patent Portfolio to Datanet, 

LLC (“Datanet”).  

16. At a high level, the Patent Portfolio protects user files and describes systems and 

techniques for archiving and restoring files.  

17. The Patent Portfolio consists of five issued U.S. Patents, U.S. Patent Nos. 

8,473,478, 9,218,348, 10,229,123, 10,331,619, and 10,585,850. 

18. U.S. Patent No. 8,473,478 (the “’478 Patent”) was filed on September 21, 2001 

and claims priority to U.S. Provisional Patent Application No. 60/234,221, filed on September 

21, 2000.   

19. The ‘478 Patent was granted an extended term through October 1, 2026. 

20. U.S. Patent No. 9,218,348 (the “’348 Patent”) was filed on June 24, 2013 as a 

continuation of the ‘478 Patent.  

21. U.S. Patent No. 10,585,850 (the “’850 Patent”) was filed on December 15, 2015 

as a continuation of the ‘348 Patent.  
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22. The ’850 Patent was granted an extended term though June 25, 2024. 

23. U.S. Patent No. 10,229,123 (the “’123 Patent”) was filed on October 20, 2017 as a 

continuation of U.S. Patent No. 10,585,850.   

24. U.S. Patent No. 10,331,619 (the “’619 Patent”) was filed as a continuation of U.S. 

Patent No. 10,585,850.    

25. Before the development of the AccuSafe project, file backup procedures (manual 

backup, schedule-based backup, and mirroring) were lacking in important ways, including: (1) 

they were complex or confusing for users, (2) they did not record all the changes made and often 

could not be reversed, and (3) they required the backup medium to be available at the time of 

backup. 

26. The Datanet Patent Portfolio provides significant advantages to the previous file 

backup systems by providing, inter alia: (1) the ability to archive files, or portions of the files, in 

close proximity of time to opening, closing, or saving the files, allowing for timely and full 

backup for later recovery, (2) the ability to store files (or portions of files) for remote or cloud 

backup when the storage location becomes available, and (3) the ability to preview prior versions 

of a file before restoring a prior version, so that only desired backup versions of the files are 

restored. 

27. The claims of the Datanet portfolio are directed to improvements in computer 

functionality when applied to data storage, and address the failings that are unique to data storage 

networked environments.  The Specifications of the patents in suit disclose that the inventions 

relates to computer-specific improvements, viz. “file preservation, file capture, file management, 

and file integrity techniques for computing devices,” and addresses computer-specific problems 

that arise given the ever-changing networked-data environment, through “captur[ing] files just 

before and/or just after the files are changed,” “hav[ing] an imperceptible impact on system 

performance from the user’s point of view,” and “captur[ing]  and stor[ing] files even when there 
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is no connection to the desired storage location … [and/or] when the desired storage location is 

unavailable.”  

28. The ‘478 Patent solution improves computer functionality over prior data storage 

approaches because it optimizes the use of various storage locations to capture changes to files in 

real time (or near real time), along with database(s) to track the movement of the files between 

the storage locations, so that previous versions of file(s) can be efficiently retrieved and restored, 

without overburdening the network resources in the process.    

29. The claims of the ‘478 patent recite specific interactions between hardware and 

software computer components to accomplish the data backup and storage, and through these 

interactions, the computer functionality is improved.  The inventions claimed in the ‘478 patent 

save user’s time, computer resources, and network bandwidth over prior approaches. 

30. The ‘348 Patent solution improves computer functionality over prior data storage 

approaches because it optimizes the use of various storage locations to capture changes to files in 

real time (or near real time), along with database(s) to track the movement of the files between 

the storage locations, so that previous versions of file(s) can be efficiently retrieved and restored, 

without overburdening the network resources in the process.    

31. The claims of the ‘348 patent recite specific interactions between hardware and 

software computer components to accomplish the data backup and storage, and through these 

interactions, the computer functionality is improved.  The inventions claimed in the ‘348 patent 

save user’s time, computer resources, and network bandwidth over prior approaches. 

32. The ‘850 Patent solution improves computer functionality over prior data storage 

approaches because it optimizes the use of various storage locations to capture changes to files in 

real time (or near real time), along with database(s) to track the movement of the files between 

the storage locations, so that previous versions of file(s) can be quickly previewed before being 

efficiently retrieved and restored, all without overburdening the network resources in the process.    
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33. The claims of the ‘850 patent recite specific interactions between hardware and 

software computer components to accomplish the data backup, presentation of previews, and the 

storage of such, and through these interactions, the computer functionality is improved.   The 

inventions claimed in the ‘850 patent save user’s time, computer resources, and network 

bandwidth by avoiding the restoration of an unwanted previous version. The technique of 

previewing multiple previous versions prior to restoring from network storage was not 

conventional and was not well-understood at the time of the invention.  

B. Defendant’s Infringement of the Asserted Patents 

34. Defendant was founded in 1975.   

35. Upon information and belief, Defendant launched its flagship services called 

OneDrive and OneDrive for Business in August 2007 (collectively referred herein as 

“OneDrive”).  

36. OneDrive provides users with the ability to share, synchronize and backup their 

files. 

37. Upon information and belief, OneDrive is bundled with Microsoft Windows and 

is available for use on a variety of platforms including Android, iOS, macOS, Windows Phone, 

Xbox 360, Xbox One, Xbox Series X, and Xbox Series S.   

38. In addition, upon information and belief, Microsoft Office directly integrates with 

OneDrive.   

39. Upon information and belief, OneDrive was called SkyDrive before the name was 

changed in 2013.   

40. Upon information and belief, OneDrive for Business was called SkyDrive Pro 

before the name was changed in 2013.   

41. Upon information and belief, since 2015, Defendant has provided a set amount of 

free storage to each OneDrive user, which has typically ranged somewhere between five (5) and 

fifteen (15) gigabytes.   
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42. Upon information and belief, each user of OneDrive may purchase up to one (1) 

terabyte of storage space on Defendant’s server(s).  

43. OneDrive provides the ability for a user to save previous versions of a file and 

then gives them the ability to restore a current version of a file to a previous version of the file by 

selecting one of the saved previous versions of the file.   

44. Upon information and belief, prior to July 2017, OneDrive only saved previous 

versions of files for Microsoft Office files.  

45. In July 2017, OneDrive expanded its version history support to all file types. 

46. Older versions of files are stored for up to thirty (30) days with OneDrive.    

47. OneDrive uses the inventions claimed in the ’348, ’478 and ’850 Patents to 

provide file backup capabilities to more than 42.7 million registered users of Microsoft Office.   

48. OneDrive provides users with the ability to archive files in close proximity of 

time to opening, updating, closing, or saving them. 

49. Upon information and belief, OneDrive maintains servers for storage of its user 

data located in Redmond, Washington. 

50. OneDrive provides users with the ability to store files for remote backup when 

storage media is available.   

51. OneDrive protects user files from unwanted edits, deletions, hackers, and viruses 

by restoring or recovering files in each OneDrive account for up to thirty (30) days.   

52. OneDrive provides users with the ability to preview prior versions of a file before 

restoring it.   

53. OneDrive provides users with a viewer history.   

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Infringement of the ’478 Patent – 35 U.S.C. §271) 

54. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference and realleges the foregoing paragraphs 

as if fully set forth herein. 
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55. Plaintiff is the current exclusive owner and assignee of all right, title, and interest 

in and to the ’478 Patent titled “Automatic Real-Time File Management Method and Apparatus”. 

56. The ‘478 Patent was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and 

Trademark Office on June 25, 2013. 

57. Plaintiff owns all rights to the ’478 Patent including the right to bring this suit for 

damages.  

58. A true and correct copy of the ’478 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

59. The ’478 Patent is valid and enforceable. 

60. Defendant has directly and indirectly infringed the ’478 patent by making, using, 

testing, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing into the United States, without authority, 

products, methods performed by and/or attributable to equipment, and or services that practice 

one or more claims of the ’478 Patent, including but not limited to its OneDrive file hosting 

product and services.   

61. As a non-limiting example, Defendant has infringed Claims 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10 

and 11 of the ’478 Patent. Defendant, without authorization from Plaintiff, has marketed, used, 

tested, offered for sale, sold, and/or imported into the U.S., including within this District, its 

OneDrive file hosting service that infringes at least Claims 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of the 

‘478 Patent.  

62. As a non-limiting example, set forth below (with claim language in italics) is a 

description of infringement of exemplary Claims 1 and 6 of the ’478 Patent in connection with 

OneDrive. This description is based on publicly available information. Plaintiff reserves the right 

to modify this description, including, for example, on the basis of information about OneDrive 

that it obtains during discovery. 

Claim 1.  

Claim 1. In a computing device, a 

method for archiving files comprising:  

OneDrive automatically backs up local files (i.e., 

operating files and/or entire folders) to the one drive 
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 cloud/server.  When a file is added to the local 

computer OneDrive folder, a copy of the file (i.e. 

Archive file) is created in a temporary storage 

staging buffer (change to send queue) to facilitate 

sending to the cloud/server.   The file in the 

OneDrive server is an archive file of the operating 

file, synchronized from the local file.  If any changes 

are made to the local file, the changes get 

synchronized to the OneDrive archive file.  

Https://support.office.com/en-us/article/sync-files-

with-onedrive-in-windows-615391c4-2bd3-4aae-

a42a-858262e42a49?ui=en-us&rs=en-us&ad=us.   

The OneDrive service monitors the OneDrive folder 

on your computer and/or your OneDrive mobile app.  

If there’s a change – a new file or folder, or an edit to 

an existing file of folder – OneDrive will 

automatically sync those changes.  No manual 

uploading or downloading is required.  

Https://support.office.com/en-us/article/sync-files-

with-onedrive-in-windows-615391c4-2bd3-4aae-

a42a-858262e42a49?ui=en-us&rs=en-us&ad=us.   

The method steps for archiving files using OneDrive 

are performed on a computing device such as a 

computer or handheld phone.     
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Detecting an instruction by an 

operating system to perform an 

operation on an operating file;  

 

OneDrive monitors changes made in files, and upon 

detecting a change in a file, OneDrive provides an 

instruction to save the modified file as an archived 

file.  OneDrive detects the instruction to change/save 

the file.  The windows notification service monitors 

the users file and provides an instruction upon 

detecting a change in a file, and OneDrive detects the 

instruction from the windows notification system to 

start the back-up process.   

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044  

Creating an archive file from the 

operating file and storing the archive 

file in a temporary first storage 

location temporally proximate to the 

operation being performed on the 

operating file and responsive to 

detecting the instruction;  

 

After detection of, and in response to the instruction 

to begin the back-up process, which occurs as soon 

as or shortly after a change in the file is made, a 

portion or all of the operating file is processed to 

create an  archive file which is saved in a “change to 

send” queue.  OneDrive uses windows notification 

system to detect and archive changes to files in real 

time.  The windows notification system informs the 

OneDrive sync application to activate whenever a 

change to a file actually happens.  Depending on the 

changes being made to a file, OneDrive may break 

the file into different sized pieces to create the 

archive file that is temporarily stored in the change to 

send queue (first temporary storage location).   

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.   
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Searching the first temporary storage 

location for the archive file responsive 

to the occurrence of a first event; and 

 

Once the archive file is moved into the change to 

send queue (first event), the archive files are 

identified so that they can be searched to determine 

their size/types before being sent to the OneDrive 

cloud server.  This identification process can be the 

first event, or the first event can be a message from 

the operating process that created the archive file to 

indicate it is done, or a message from a timer to 

search the change to send queue.  In response to the 

first event, the change to send queue (first temporary 

storage location) is searched in order to determine 

the archive file size/type prior to being sent to the 

OneDrive cloud server.  

Http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.    

Moving the archive file to a second 

storage location responsive to a 

second event, the second storage 

location being a permanent storage 

location;  

 

The files (i.e., archived files) are transmitted (moved) 

from a user’s computer (i.e., local device) to the 

OneDrive cloud server (the second, permanent 

storage location).  When the identified archived file 

has a larger size, then it is divided into chunks for 

uploading. After dividing the file into smaller chunks 

(if needed), one by one, these chunks are transmitted 

from the change to send queue (first temporary 

storage) to the OneDrive cloud server (permanent 

storage) in response to a different second event that 

indicates the OneDrive server is ready to receive 

data.  File transmission only occurs in response to a 

Case 2:22-cv-01545   Document 1   Filed 10/31/22   Page 11 of 72

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?LinkId=829044


 

  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT - 12 
 

38TH FLOOR 
1000 SECOND AVENUE 

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98104 
(206) 622-2000 

 
 

message from the OneDrive cloud server that it can 

receive data (second event).   

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.  

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/change-the-

onedrive-sync-app-upload-or-download-rate-

71cc69da-2371-4981-8cc8-b4558bdda56e?ui=en-

us&rs=en-us&ad=us.    

After storing the archive file in the first 

temporary storage location, updating a 

database to indicate that the archive 

file is located in the first temporary 

storage location;  

 

After storing the archive file in the change to send 

queue, OneDrive updates a OneDrive database, upon 

information and belief “<cid>.dat” database, 

“metadata” database and/or “auto_upload.db” 

database to indicate the archive file is in the first 

temporary storage location. 

Http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044  

(see also [private app storage 

path]/database/metadata; [private app storage 

path]/database/auto_upload.db) 

 

(see also [private app storage 

path]/database/metadata; [private app storage 

path]/database/auto_upload.db) 

 

Determining a final destination for the 

archive file; 

 

The archive file is determined and stored in one or 

more encrypted file chunks in the azure storage as 

the final destination, with metadata pointers to the 

azure storage on the OneDrive cloud server.    
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http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.   

Moving the archive file from the first 

temporary storage location to an 

intermediate storage location;  

 

OneDrive moves the archive file from the change to 

send queue to an output buffer, or a local cache, an 

external cache, or an intermediary server 

(intermediate storage location); before it moves the 

archive file into a final destination such as the azure 

storage on the OneDrive cloud server. 

Updating the database to indicate that 

the archive file is located in the 

intermediate storage location; and 

 

The OneDrive database is updated with 

“loadingprogress” data which tracks whether data 

transfer to the cloud has taken place for any given 

archive file, the progress of such transfer, and the 

progress of the output buffer, the local cache, the 

external cache, or the intermediary server.   

After moving the archive file to the 

second storage location, updating the 

database to indicate that the archive 

file is located in the second storage 

location. 

 

When an archive file is being moved to the azure 

storage, OneDrive shows a blue icon to indicate the 

archive file is being transferred to azure storage (i.e., 

from the output buffer, the local cache, the external 

cache, or the intermediary server).  When the archive 

file has been moved into the azure storage (i.e., has 

been transferred to the final destination), the 

OneDrive database is updated and a green icon is 

shown at the client side instead of the blue icon.   

Claim 6.   

An article of manufacture comprising 

a non-transitory computer useable 

medium having computer readable 

Defendant hosts a computer server storing a 

computer executable application (called OneDrive) 

that has computer readable code that performs the 
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code for performing the method of 

claim 1.   

 

steps of claim 1, as detailed above. 

(https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-

365/onedrive/download).   

63. As described above, Defendant’s products or services infringe the ’478 Patent. 

64. Defendant’s OneDrive service includes a program which can be installed on a 

computer. 

65. Defendant’s OneDrive program detects instructions to perform operation(s) on 

files.  

66. When an instruction is detected, Defendant’s OneDrive program creates an 

archived version of the file being stored or modified and stores the archives file in a temporary 

storage location.  

67. Defendant’s OneDrive service records in a database the location of the archived 

file in the temporary storage location. 

68. Later, the archived file is moved to a second storage location. 

69. Defendant’s OneDrive service records in the database the location of the archived 

file in the second storage location. 

70. Defendant has actual knowledge of Plaintiff’s rights in the ’478 Patent and details 

of OneDrive’s infringement of the ’478 Patent based on at least the filing and service of this 

Complaint.  

71. By the foregoing acts, including its testing and use of OneDrive, Defendant has 

directly infringed, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, the ’478 Patent in violation 

of 35 U.S.C. § 271.  

72. Defendant has knowledge of the ’478 Patent and indirectly infringes the ’478 

Patent by active inducement under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) and/or § 271(f). Defendant has induced, 

caused, urged, encouraged, aided and abetted its direct and indirect customers to make, use, test, 

sell, offer for sale and/or import accused products and/or services. Defendant has done so by acts 
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including but not limited to selling accused products and/or services to its customers; marketing 

accused products and/or services; and providing instructions, technical support, and other 

support and encouragement (available at https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/office/back-up-

your-documents-pictures-and-desktop-folders-with-onedrive-d61a7930-a6fb-4b95-b28a-

6552e77c3057, or https://support.microsoft.com/en-

US/search/results?query=restore+file+from+backup+OneDrive&isEnrichedQuery=true, for 

instance) for the use of accused products and/or services. Such conduct by Defendant was 

intended to and actually resulted in direct infringement, including the making, testing, using, 

selling, offering for sale, and/or importation of accused products and/or services in the United 

States. 

73. Defendant has knowledge of the ’478 Patent and indirectly infringes by 

contributing to the infringement of, and continuing to contribute to the infringement of, one or 

more claims of the ’478 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(c) and/or 271(f) by selling, offering for 

sale, and/or importing into the United States, the accused products and/or services. Defendant 

knows that the accused products and/or services include hardware components and software 

instructions that work in concert to perform specific, intended functions. Such specific, intended 

functions, carried out by these hardware and software combinations, are a material part of the 

inventions of the ’478 Patent and are not staple articles of commerce suitable for substantial non-

infringing use. 

74. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement has, and continues to be, 

knowing, intentional and willful. 

75. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’478 Patent has caused, and will continue 

to cause, Plaintiff damages for which Plaintiff is entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 

§ 284.   

76. Upon information and belief, Defendant has gained profits by virtue of its 

infringement of the ’478 Patent.   
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77. The circumstances surrounding Defendant’s infringement are exceptional and, 

therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Infringement of the ’348 Patent – 35 U.S.C. §271) 

78. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference and realleges the foregoing paragraphs 

as if fully set forth herein. 

79. Plaintiff is the current exclusive owner and assignee of all right, title, and interest 

in and to the ’348 Patent titled “Automatic Real-Time File Management Method and Apparatus”. 

80. The ’348 Patent was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and 

Trademark Office on December 22, 2015. 

81. Plaintiff owns all rights to the ’348 Patent including the right to bring this suit for 

damages.  

82. A true and correct copy of the ’348 Patent is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

83. Before its expiration, the ’348 Patent was valid and enforceable. 

84. Defendant has directly and indirectly infringed the ’348 patent by making, using, 

testing, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing into the United States, without authority, 

products, methods performed by and/or attributable to equipment, and or services that practice 

one or more claims of the ’348 Patent, including but not limited to its OneDrive file hosting 

product and services.   

85. As a non-limiting example, Defendant has infringed Claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10 – 

20, and 23 – 31 of the ’348 Patent. Defendant, without authorization from Plaintiff, has 

marketed, tested, used, offered for sale, sold, and/or imported into the U.S., including within this 

District, its OneDrive file hosting service that infringes at least Claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10 – 20, 

and 23 – 31 of the ’348 Patent.  

86. As a non-limiting example, set forth below (with claim language in italics) is a 

description of infringement of exemplary Claims 15 and 29 of the ’348 Patent in connection with 
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OneDrive. This description is based on publicly available information. Plaintiff reserves the right 

to modify this description, including, for example, on the basis of information about OneDrive 

that it obtains during discovery. 

Claim 15 

A method for archiving files, comprising 

of steps (a) to (d) following: 

OneDrive automatically backs up local files (i.e., 

operating files and/or entire folders) to the one 

drive cloud/server.  When a file is added to the 

local computer OneDrive folder, a copy of the file 

(i.e. Archive file) is created in a temporary storage 

staging buffer (change to send queue) to facilitate 

sending to the cloud/server.   The file in the 

OneDrive server is an archive file of the operating 

file, synchronized from the local file.  If any 

changes are made to the local file, the changes get 

synchronized to the OneDrive archive file.  

Https://support.office.com/en-us/article/sync-files-

with-onedrive-in-windows-615391c4-2bd3-4aae-

a42a-858262e42a49?ui=en-us&rs=en-us&ad=us.   

The OneDrive service monitors the OneDrive 

folder on your computer and/or your OneDrive 

mobile app.  If there’s a change – a new file or 

folder, or an edit to an existing file of folder – 

OneDrive will automatically sync those changes.  

No manual uploading or downloading is required.  

Https://support.office.com/en-us/article/sync-files-
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with-onedrive-in-windows-615391c4-2bd3-4aae-

a42a-858262e42a49?ui=en-us&rs=en-us&ad=us.   

The method steps for archiving files using 

OneDrive are performed on a computing device 

such as a computer or handheld phone.     

(a) the step of detecting an instruction by 

a resident program in a computing 

device for performing an operation on 

an operating file;  

 

OneDrive monitors changes made in files, and 

upon detecting a change in a file, OneDrive 

provides an instruction to save the modified file as 

an archived file.  OneDrive detects the instruction 

to save the file.  The windows notification service 

monitors the users file and provides an instruction 

upon detecting a change in a file, and OneDrive 

detects the instruction from the windows 

notification system to start the back-up process.   

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044  

(b) the step of creating an archive file 

from the operating file and storing the 

archive file in a temporary storage 

location temporally proximate to the 

operation being performed on the 

operating file and responsive to 

detecting the instruction;  

 

After detection of, and in response to the 

instruction to begin the back-up process, which 

occurs as soon as or shortly after a change in the 

file is made, a portion or all of the operating file is 

processed to create an archive file which is saved 

to a “change to send” queue.  OneDrive uses 

windows notification system to detect and archive 

changes to files in real time.  The windows 

notification system informs the OneDrive sync 

application to activate whenever a change to a file 

actually happens.  Depending on the changes being 
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made to a file, OneDrive may break the file into 

different sized pieces to create the archive file that 

is temporarily stored in the change to send queue 

(first temporary storage location).   

http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.   

(c) the step of identifying presence of the 

archive file in the temporary storage 

location responsive to the occurrence of 

a first event; and 

 

Once the archive file is moved into the change to 

send queue (first event), the archive files are 

identified so that they can be searched to determine 

their size/types before being sent to the OneDrive 

cloud server.  This identification process can be 

the first event, or the first event can be a message 

from the operating process that created the archive 

file to indicate it is done, or a message from a 

timer to search the change to send queue.  In 

response to the first event, the change to send 

queue (first temporary storage location) is searched 

in order to identify the presence of the archive file, 

and its size/type prior to being sent to the 

OneDrive cloud server. 

Http://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/p/?linkid=829044.    

(d) the step of transmitting the archive 

file to a second storage location 

responsive to a second event, the second 

storage location being an intermediate 

or a permanent storage location, 

When the identified archived file has a larger size, 

then it is divided into chunks for uploading. After 

dividing the file into smaller chunks (if needed), 

one by one, these chunks are transmitted from the 

change to send queue (first temporary storage) to 

the OneDrive cloud server (permanent storage) in 
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wherein the first event is different from 

the second event.  

 

response to a different second event that either 

indicates the OneDrive server is ready to receive 

data, or indicates which blocks to send.  After 

OneDrive determines (second event) which files or 

blocks (archive file) are different than what it 

already has saved, the archive file is then 

transmitted to an output buffer, or a local cache, 

and external cache, or an intermediary server 

(intermediate storage location), or to the OneDrive 

server (permanent storage) in response to the 

second event. 

Claim 29 

A non-transitory computer readable 

medium comprising program instruction 

for performing the method of claim 15.   

Defendant hosts a computer server storing a 

computer executable application (called OneDrive) 

that has computer readable code that performs the 

method steps of claim 15, as detailed above 

(https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-

365/onedrive/download). 

87. As described above, Defendant’s products or services infringe the ’348 Patent. 

88. Defendant’s OneDrive service includes a program which can be installed on a 

computer or computing device. 

89. Defendant’s OneDrive program detects instructions to perform operation(s) files.  

90. When an instruction is detected, Defendant’s OneDrive program creates an 

archived version of the file being modified and stores the archives file in a temporary storage 

location.  

91. Later, the archived file is moved to another storage location. 

Case 2:22-cv-01545   Document 1   Filed 10/31/22   Page 20 of 72

https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/onedrive/download
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/onedrive/download


 

  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT - 21 
 

38TH FLOOR 
1000 SECOND AVENUE 

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98104 
(206) 622-2000 

 
 

92. Defendant has actual knowledge of Plaintiff’s rights in the ’348 Patent and details 

of OneDrive’s infringement of the ’348 Patent based on at least the filing and service of this 

Complaint.  

93. By the foregoing acts, including its testing and use of OneDrive, Defendant has 

directly infringed, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, the ’348 Patent in violation 

of 35 U.S.C. § 271.   

94. Defendant has knowledge of the ’348 Patent and indirectly infringes the ’348 

Patent by active inducement under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) and/or § 271(f). Defendant has induced, 

caused, urged, encouraged, aided and abetted its direct and indirect customers to make, test, use, 

sell, offer for sale and/or import accused products and/or services. Defendant has done so by acts 

including but not limited to selling accused products and/or services to its customers; marketing 

accused products and/or services; and providing instructions, technical support, and other 

support and encouragement (available at https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/office/back-up-

your-documents-pictures-and-desktop-folders-with-onedrive-d61a7930-a6fb-4b95-b28a-

6552e77c3057, or https://support.microsoft.com/en-

US/search/results?query=restore+file+from+backup+OneDrive&isEnrichedQuery=true, for 

instance) for the use of accused products and/or services. Such conduct by Defendant was 

intended to and actually resulted in direct infringement, including the making, testing, using, 

selling, offering for sale, and/or importation of accused products and/or services in the United 

States. 

95. Defendant has knowledge of the ’348 Patent and indirectly infringes by 

contributing to the infringement of, and continuing to contribute to the infringement of, one or 

more claims of the ’348 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(c) and/or 271(f) by selling, offering for 

sale, and/or importing into the United States, the accused products and/or services. Defendant 

knows that the accused products and/or services include hardware components and software 

instructions that work in concert to perform specific, intended functions. Such specific, intended 
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functions, carried out by these hardware and software combinations, are a material part of the 

inventions of the ’348 Patent and are not staple articles of commerce suitable for substantial non-

infringing use.   

96. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement was knowing, intentional 

and willful. 

97. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’348 Patent has caused Plaintiff damages 

for which Plaintiff is entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284.   

98. Upon information and belief, Defendant has gained profits by virtue of its 

infringement of the ’348 Patent.   

99. The circumstances surrounding Defendant’s infringement are exceptional and, 

therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Infringement of the ’850 Patent – 35 U.S.C. §271) 

100. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference and realleges the foregoing paragraphs 

as if fully set forth herein. 

101. Plaintiff is the current exclusive owner and assignee of all right, title, and interest 

in and to the ’850 Patent titled “Automatic Real-Time File Management Method and Apparatus”. 

102. The ’850 Patent was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and 

Trademark Office on March 10, 2020. 

103. Plaintiff owns all rights to the ’850 Patent including the right to bring this suit for 

damages.  

104. A true and correct copy of the ’850 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

105. The ’850 Patent is valid and enforceable. 

106. Defendant has directly and indirectly infringed the ’850 patent by making, using, 

testing, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing into the United States, without authority, 

products, methods performed by and/or attributable to equipment, and or services that practice 
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one or more claims of the ‘850 Patent, including but not limited to its OneDrive file hosting 

product and services.   

107. As a non-limiting example, Defendant has infringed Claims 1 – 18 of the ’850 

Patent. Defendant, without authorization from Plaintiff, has marketed, used, tested, offered for 

sale, sold, and/or imported into the U.S., including within this District, its OneDrive file hosting 

service that infringes at least Claim 1 – 21 of the ‘850 Patent.  

108. As a non-limiting example, set forth below (with claim language in italics) is a 

description of infringement of exemplary Claim 10 of the ’850 Patent in connection with 

OneDrive. This description is based on publicly available information. Plaintiff reserves the right 

to modify this description, including, for example, on the basis of information about OneDrive 

that it obtains during discovery. 

Claim 10 

A method of restoring a file to a 

previous version of the file, a current 

version of the file being available at a 

local storage location, comprising the 

steps of: 

 

OneDrive provides a method for users to restore a 

file to a previous version from the current version.  

The current version of the file is stored locally on 

the user’s computer.         

(A) presenting information for a 

collection of one or more previous 

versions of the file, the information for 

the collection including information 

indicative of at least one or more of 

previous versions of the file, wherein a 

restorable representation of each 

version, V, of the previous versions, is 

OneDrive maintains a Version History of a given 

file.  When a user selects to view the Version 

History of a document, OneDrive displays the 

previous versions of the file to the user via their 

web interface.  Previous versions are stored 

remotely from the user’s computer on OneDrive’s 

server.  Each previous version is available for 

selection for previewing and/or restoring the current 
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retrievable from a remote storage 

location, the restorable representation 

having at least information required for 

recovering the version V, the remote 

storage location being accessible 

through a network;  

 

version via the web interface.  When selected, 

OneDrive retrieves the selected previous version 

from the remote storage and restores the current 

version of the file to its previous version.     

 

(B) responsive to a selection to preview 

a selected previous version of the file 

based on the presented information for 

the collection of (A), presenting a 

presentable representation of the 

selected previous version, the selected 

previous version being one of the 

previous versions of the file in the 

presented information for the 

collection, the presentable 

representation having at least 

information required for presenting at 

least a portion of the selected previous 

version; 

 

For each previous version that is clicked on by the 

user, the user can open (download/open) the file to 

preview at least a portion of the previous version of 

the file, as shown below in screen shots. 
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(C) responsive to a selection to restore 

the selected previous version, retrieving 

the restorable representation of the 

selected previous version from the 

remote storage location and storing the 

selected previous version as the current 

version on the local storage location, 

the selected previous version available 

from the restorable representation of 

the selected previous version. 

The user can select which previous version it wishes 

to restore and clicks the restore button to indicate its 

selection of the previous version.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OneDrive then retrieves the selected previous 

version from the OneDrive server and restores the 

current file back to the particular selected previous 

version.  The restored file is then stored locally on 

the user’s computer.   
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109. As described above, Defendant’s products or services infringe the ’850 Patent. 

110. Defendant’s OneDrive service allows for restoring a file to a previous version of 

the file. 

111. Defendant’s OneDrive service maintains current version of files at a local storage 

location. 

112. Defendant’s OneDrive service maintains information for previous versions of 

files. 

113. Defendant’s OneDrive service allows for retrieving a version of files from a 

remote storage location. 

114. Defendant has actual knowledge of Plaintiff’s rights in the ’850 Patent and details 

of OneDrive’s infringement of the ’850 Patent based on at least the filing and service of this 

Complaint.  

115. By the foregoing acts, including its testing and use of OneDrive, Defendant has 

directly infringed, literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, the ’850 Patent in violation 

of 35 U.S.C. § 271.   

116. Defendant has knowledge of the ’850 Patent and indirectly infringes the ’850 

Patent by active inducement under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) and/or § 271(f). Defendant has induced, 

caused, urged, encouraged, aided and abetted its direct and indirect customers to make, test, use, 

sell, offer for sale and/or import accused products and/or services. Defendant has done so by acts 

including but not limited to selling accused products and/or services to its customers; marketing 
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accused products and/or services; and providing instructions, technical support, and other 

support and encouragement (available at https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/office/back-up-

your-documents-pictures-and-desktop-folders-with-onedrive-d61a7930-a6fb-4b95-b28a-

6552e77c3057, or https://support.microsoft.com/en-

US/search/results?query=restore+file+from+backup+OneDrive&isEnrichedQuery=true, for 

instance) for the use of accused products and/or services. Such conduct by Defendant was 

intended to and actually resulted in direct infringement, including the making, testing, using, 

selling, offering for sale, and/or importation of accused products and/or services in the United 

States. 

117. Defendant has knowledge of the ’850 Patent and indirectly infringes by 

contributing to the infringement of, and continuing to contribute to the infringement of, one or 

more claims of the ’850 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(c) and/or 271(f) by selling, offering for 

sale, and/or importing into the United States, the accused products and/or services. Defendant 

knows that the accused products and/or services include hardware components and software 

instructions that work in concert to perform specific, intended functions. Such specific, intended 

functions, carried out by these hardware and software combinations, are a material part of the 

inventions of the ’850 Patent and are not staple articles of commerce suitable for substantial non-

infringing use.   

118. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement has, and continues to be, 

knowing, intentional and willful. 

119. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’850 Patent has caused, and will continue 

to cause, Plaintiff damages for which Plaintiff is entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 

§ 284.   

120. Upon information and belief, Defendant has gained profits by virtue of its 

infringement of the ’850 Patent.   
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121. The circumstances surrounding Defendant’s infringement are exceptional and, 

therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

122. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38(b), Plaintiff respectfully demands 

a jury trial of all issues triable to a jury in this action. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant as follows: 

A. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has directly 

infringed the ’478 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of equivalents; 

B. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has indirectly 

infringed the ’478 Patent by inducing and/or contributing to its customers’ 

infringement. 

C. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has directly 

infringed the ’348 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of equivalents; 

D. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has indirectly 

infringed the ’348 Patent by inducing and/or contributing to its customers’ 

infringement. 

E. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has directly 

infringed the ’850 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of equivalents; 

F. A judgment and order adjudicating and declaring that Defendant has indirectly 

infringed the ’850 Patent by inducing and/or contributing to its customers’ 

infringement. 

G. A judgment and order that Defendant must account for and pay actual damages 

(but no less than a reasonable royalty), to Plaintiff for Defendant’s infringement 

of the ’478 Patent, the ’348 Patent and/or the ’850 Patent, including supplemental 

damages for any continuing post-verdict infringement up until entry of the final 
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judgment and an award of an ongoing royalty for Defendant’s post-judgment 

infringement in an amount according to proof in the event that a permanent 

injunction preventing future acts of infringement is not granted; 

H. A determination that this case is exceptional under 35 U.S.C. § 285; 

I. A judgment and order awarding Plaintiff its reasonable attorneys’ fees; 

J. A judgment and order awarding Plaintiff its costs, expenses, and interest, 

including pre-judgment and post-judgment, as provided for by 35 U.S.C. § 284;  

K. A judgment and order that Defendant’s infringement has been willful and an 

award of treble damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

L. A judgment and order awarding pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on each 

and every monetary award; and 

M. Granting Plaintiff any such other and further relief as this Court deems just and 

proper, or that Plaintiff may be entitled to as a matter of law or equity. 
 
 DATED this 31st day of October, 2022. 
 

BYRNES KELLER CROMWELL LLP 
 
By /s/ Bradley S. Keller  

Bradley S. Keller, WSBA #10665 

By /s/ Jofrey M. McWilliam    
Jofrey M. McWilliam, WSBA #28441 
1000 Second Avenue, 38th Floor 
Seattle, Washington  98104 
206-622-2000 
bkeller@byrneskeller.com  
jmcwilliam@byrneskeller.com  

 
Gregory P. Sitrick (pro hac vice forthcoming) 
Isaac S. Crum (pro hac vice forthcoming) 
MESSNER REEVES LLP 
7250 N. 16th Street, Suite 410 
Phoenix, AZ 85020 
gsitrick@messner.com 
icrum@messner.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Datanet LLC 
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